Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda
Supplementary information
Tuesday, June 18, 2024, 7:00pm

Library Meeting Room and Zoom
502 State St, Hood River

Library Board:

Board President: Brian Hackett, Board Vice-President: Karen Bureker, Board members:
Megan Janik, Sara Marsden, and Jean Sheppard.

The Hood River County Library District will hold this meeting by offering a hybrid format.
Participants can attend in-person or on Zoom Conferencing. Please use the following phone
number or video link:

1-253-215-8782, https://us02web.zoom.us/j/897458126187?
pwd=NFBFTOXUVjFSNOdDVGNIiZTVsNDQ2dz09, Meeting ID: 897 4581 2618

Agenda Items Action Respon
sible
l. Call to Order Brian
Hackett
Il. |Approval of the agenda Motion Brian
(additions/corrections/deletions) Hackett
lll. |Approval of the consent agenda Motion Brian
Hackett
IV. |Actual or potential conflicts of interest Brian
Hackett
V. |Public comment (3 minutes each) Brian
Hackett
V1. |Reports
i. Friends update Rachael
Fox
ii. Foundation update Rachael
Fox
iii. May 2024 Financial Statement Rachael
Fox
iv. Director’s report Rachael
Fox
VIl. Old Business

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18]




VIIL.

New Business

i. 2024-25 Budget approval Motion Brian
Hackett
ii. Approval of recurring payments for 2024-25 Brian
Hackett
iii. Discussion of 2024-25 President and Vice- Brian
President positions Hackett
iv. Discussion of regular meeting time Brian
Hackett
V. Salary Schedule 2024-25 Motion Brian
Hackett
vi. Conference system Motion Rachael
Fox
V. Library Director contract renewal Brian
Hackett
IX. /Announcements Rachael
Fox
i. Comments from board members All
ii. Requests/Comments from Library Director Rachael
Fox
X. |Agenda items for next meeting Brian
Hackett
Xl. |Adjournment regular meeting Brian
Hackett

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary,

Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property

ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights

ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7:00pm to 9:00pm in the
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is

given.

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18]



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda
Supplementary information
Tuesday, June 18, 2024, 7:00pm

Library Meeting Room and Zoom
502 State St, Hood River

Library Board:

Board President: Brian Hackett, Board Vice-President: Karen Bureker, Board members:
Megan Janik, Sara Marsden, and Jean Sheppard.

The Hood River County Library District will hold this meeting by offering a hybrid format.
Participants can attend in-person or on Zoom Conferencing. Please use the following phone
number or video link:

1-253-215-8782, https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89745812618?
pwd=NFBFTOxUV]FSNOdDVGNIiZTVsNDQ2dz09, Meeting ID: 897 4581 2618

i. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 budget

committee meeting
Attachment:
* lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget
Committee meeting
ii. Minutes from the May 21, 2024 Library Board
meeting
Attachment:
* [lILii. Minutes from the May 21, 2024 Library Board
meeting
iii. Minutes from the June 10, 2024 Library

Budget committee meeting

Attachment:

o [lILiii. Minutes from the June 10, 2024 Library Budget
committee meeting

Agenda Items Action Respon
sible
l. Call to Order Brian
Hackett
Il. |Approval of the agenda Motion Brian
(additions/corrections/deletions) Hackett
lll. |Approval of the consent agenda Motion Brian
Hackett

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update




IV. |Actual or potential conflicts of interest Brian
Hackett

V. |Public comment (3 minutes each) Brian
Hackett

VI. |Reports

i. Friends update Rachael
« Assistant Director Mo Burford has arranged for author Fox
Robert Shano to present his memoir, Never Too OId for
War for a book discussion and signing on Saturday,
September 14 at 2pm. The author is offering to share
the revenue from the book sales at the event with the
Friends of the Library.

* The Friends of the Library are looking for a new leader
for their book cleaning volunteer group.

* The new bookshelves purchased by the Friends of the
Library for the entryway book sale area will be installed
by August. The additional height and width of the new
shelves will allow a greater number of books to be
displayed and sold.

* The Friends had one member rejoin and three new
members join in May.

ii. Foundation update Rachael
« The Library Foundation has provided $78,000 to the Fox
Library District for fiscal year 2024-25.

o Magazines and newspapers $4,000

o Electronic resources $12,500

= These resources include Library2Go, a
downloadable media service offering ebooks,
audiobooks, and recently added magazines, as
well as TumbleBooks, an engaging e-book
service for children. We also offer NovelList, our
reader's advisory tool, and Kanopy, our diverse
streaming platform. This year we're excited to
introduce a new cultural pass check-out system,
included in our membership to Libraries of
Eastern Oregon, which also encompasses
Library2Go.

o Movie licensing $1,000
= Annually, we pay Movie Licensing USA and
Motion Picture Licensing Corporation for the
rights to screen movies to the public.

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



o FISH free book project - $6,000

= This provides a twelve-month supply of library

materials for distribution at the FISH food bank
locations.

o Feast of Words 2024 - $35,000

= We are thankful for the Library Foundation's
Feast of Words fundraiser raising an impressive
$40,000! We originally planned on only replacing
the main circulation desk, but with the funds
raised at the Feast of Words, we'll now be able to
replace both the main circulation desk and
children's desk with custom models for a budget
of around $25,000, thanks to a company that
serves government organizations. The new desks
will improve accessibility and efficiency for all our
patrons. The bookmobile services will also benefit
from the raised funds, allowing us to provide
great programs and services. investment in these
initiatives will significantly contribute to making
our library more inclusive and responsive to the
diverse needs of our patrons.

o Hood River Library meeting room -

videoconferencing $13,500

= The Hood River Library meeting room, used by
over 400 groups annually, offers hybrid meetings.
Our current system was designed for a smaller
space, which makes it difficult for in-person and
remote participants to communicate effectively
during hybrid meetings. We will install a new
system with a centrally located camera and
microphone, speakers in each corner, and a
control unit. This upgrade will significantly
enhance the patron experience.

o Makerspace - $6,000

= The financial support is important to sustaining
the Makerspace, a crafting and creation space
open to the public during Hood River Library's
open hours. This space has become a treasured
resource for families and children in our
community, fostering creativity and hands-on
learning.

Page 3

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



iii. May 2024 Financial Statement Rachael
The financial statements for May were not ready at the time of Fox

the library board packet release. The tax statements from Hood
River County have not been released yet.

iv. Director’s report Rachael
Fox

Administration

* Thanks to Children’s Librarian Annelisa Gebhard the
library was awarded a $2,000 grant by the Dollar
General Literacy Foundation. We will use the funds for
the Summer Reading program.

* Thanks to Yeliza Vargas-Boots, our Bilingual Outreach
Librarian, the library received a $4,000 grant from the
State Library of Oregon to pay for a teen intern this
summer. The intern will be focused on outreach services
and will assist with the bookmobile route and the
summer reading programs in Odell. The position is open
until filled. Please visit our website for more details,_
https://hoodriverlibrary.org/employment/.

* | am working with HR Answers to update our job
descriptions and employee evaluation process. Moving
forward, we will use job descriptions as a tool that can
be used in many areas including compensation, ADA,
Worker's compensation, training/development, and
evaluations. We have not updated our evaluation
process since the District was formed in 2011. The new
evaluation process will align more with fulfilling one's job
descriptions.

Programs and Services
* The program staff have been working hard to provide
creative programming for this spring. Here is a list of
June programs.

o All Ages

« Summer Reading Begins Tuesday, June
22nd

* Summer reading sign-up and all program
dates and details will be available on our

Page 4

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



website and at all our locations on June 15th.
We'll have performers and events at Hood
River, Cascade Locks, Parkdale locations and
the community of Odell throughout the
summer! Prizes for all ages.

» Every month, we will highlight nationally
recognized heritage months and holidays at our
library, providing a platform for celebration and
exploration. Many libraries across the nation also
participate in honoring these same occasions.

The Hood River County Library District provides
free and equitable access to cultural and
educational experiences. The library celebrates
ideas, promotes creativity, connects people, and
enriches lives, with an emphasis on promoting
literacy and equity in library collections, services,
and programs.

Discover the diverse range of materials available
in our collection. Visit the library, search our
online catalog, download ebooks and audiobooks
or stream movies.

o Pride Month

=  Pride month commemorates years of
struggle for civil rights and the ongoing
pursuit of equal justice under the law
for the lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender, and queer community, as
well as the accomplishments of
LGBTQ+ individuals.

o Adult programs

* Noblesse Oblige Paolo Giorgi, Thursday,
June 6 at 4:30pm Hood River Library Reading
Room. Join artist and author Paolo Giorgi for a
rousing conversation as he celebrates the
publication of his latest work Noblesse Oblige.

* Get to Know Your Library of Things:

Cherry Pitter, Tuesday, June 25 at 5:30pm
Hood River Library Reading Room. Join us for a
demonstration by an expert from the OSU
Extension Services on the many uses of our

Page 5

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



Cherry Pitters. This presentation is part of a
larger series of classes offered at the Hood River
and Cascade Locks libraries to help patrons
safely and efficiently use some of the food
preparation equipment in our Library of Things
collection.

Yoga for adults, Saturdays, 10:30am-
11:30am, Hood River Library Meeting Room. Join
our weekly yoga classes taught by Snapdragon
Yoga, beginning June 1st. Open to adults, the
program is available as a drop-in course every
Saturday through August 31st.

Hood River Book Club meets the second
Wednesday of the month at 12:30 p.m. Hood
River Library Meeting Room & Zoom. May's book
club selection is The House in the Cerulean Sea
by T.J. Klune.

Cascade Locks Book Club meets the
Fourth Thursday of the month from 5:15 to 7:00
p.m. at the Cascade Locks Library.

Writing Group: Every Wednesday at 3 pm in
the Hood River Library Columbia Room. Creative
writing together! Join with fellow writers to work
on your craft through prompts and (sometimes)
share the results. For more information, please
contact Patty Kaplan (310.710.3822).

o Teen programs

Name That Tune! Thursday, June 13 at
6:00pm Hood River Library Theater. Let’s
celebrate Pride with a song! Teens and adults
can play along, name a song, and possibly win a
prize. Open to ages 13 to adult. In the library
theater.

Teen programs are held in the Library

Theater Saturdays at 2 pm. Pick one or all
that look fun and be creative, volunteer, play
games, discuss books and eat snacks. Open to
ages 12 to 18, please ask Teen Librarian Rachel
for more info.

Page 6

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update




o Creative Writing Group, 1st Saturday of
the month at 2pm

o Library Teen Council, 2nd Saturday of the
month at 2pm. Teen Council will meet on
the 2nd Saturday of the month to plan,
prepare and participate in teen programs
while earning volunteer hours and eat
snacks.

o Gaming, 3rd Saturday of the month at 2pm

o Graphic Novel/Manga Book Group. 4th
Saturday of the month at 2pm

* Magic the Gathering, 2nd and 4th Fridays of
the month at 4pm in the Library Theater.

o Children’s programs

+ Storytimes
+  Family Storytime — Hood River

Library Thursdays at 10:30 a.m.

o The storytime is open to all ages.
Storytime will feature stories, songs and
fun! Literacy enrichment will be at the
heart of every session. Children will learn
pre-reading skills, develop an increased
vocabulary, and nurture a lifelong love of
reading!

« Weekly playgroup and monthly
storytime - Parkdale and Cascade
Locks

* Looking for something fun to do with your
children that haven't yet started school? We
have playgroups at our Cascade Locks and
Parkdale Libraries! Each Friday from 10:30-
11:30 we invite parents to come with their
children to explore the library, help kids build
social skills, and make new friends.

* The first Friday of the month in Parkdale and
the last Friday of the month in Cascade Locks
we will have a librarian led storytime.

o Bookmobile route

Page 7

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



* Pine Grove, 1st Thursday of the month

* Early Intervention Pine Grove School 1:30am-
1pm

o Hood River
e 2" Thursday of the month, 2:30-6:00pm
* Neighborhoods behind Rosauers
» 2:30p-3:30p Pacific Ave (street parking)

» 3:30p-4:30p Sieverkropp Dr (street parking)

* 5:00p-6:00p Wyeast Vista Apartments 1800
8th st.

o Hood River
e 3" Thursday of the month, 2:30-6:00pm
* Apartments and Mobile Home Parks on

Cascade Ave.

o 2:30p-3:30p Hood River Mobile Manor
(next to Les Schwab) 3300 Cascade Ave. .

o 3:30-4:30p Hood River Crossings
Apartments 3145 Cascade Ave.

o 5:00p-6:00p Columbia View Apartments
1695 Oak St.

o Hood River
e Every 4" Thursday of the month, 3:00-4:00pm
* Hood River Rockford Grange
o Senior facilities
e 1% Friday of the month, 10am-12:30pm
o Odell
« 2" and 4™ Saturdays
e 10:30a-12:00p Mobile Home Park/AGA RD

VIl. |Old Business

VIIl. New Business

i. 2024-25 Budget approval Motion Brian
I. Budget hearing Hackett
Attachments:

* VIll.i.a. Proposed 2024-25 budget
* VIILi.b. Resolution 2023-24.04, adopting the
budget and imposing taxes

Annually, the Board must approve the budget and tax rate for
the coming fiscal year. The proposed 2024-25 budget, as
approved by the Budget Committee at their May 14, 2024

Page 8

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



meeting, is attached. There are no additional proposed
changes from what the Budget Committee approved, unless
Board members have recommendations. Final 2024-25 budget
approval requires passage of Resolution 2023-24.04.
Following approval, | will submit the proper paperwork to the
County and State.

Before budget approval, the Chair must open the Budget
Hearing, which gives the public an opportunity to comment on
the budget. Notice was published in the June 12", 2024 edition
of the Columbia Gorge News.

ii. Approval of recurring payments for 2024-25
Attachment:
* VIILii. Resolution No. 2023-24.05 - approving
recurring and online payments for 2024-25

Our auditors, Pauly Rogers & Co., recommend that the Board
annually authorize the specific list of vendors whom we pay
online and/or automatically. This mainly includes utilities and
regular contract payments. The attached resolution provides
this authorization. Online payments save significant time and
money for the District.

Brian
Hackett

iii. Discussion of 2024-25 President and Vice-

President positions

At the July meeting, the Board will elect a new President and
Vice President. For this agenda item, the Board will discuss
who is willing to fulfill those positions.

Brian
Hackett

iv. Discussion of regular meeting time

The Board's current regular meeting time is the third Tuesday
of the month at 7:00pm. Annually the Board must adopt a
resolution setting its regular meeting time. The Board will
discuss the best meeting times so that a resolution can be
passed during the July meeting.

Brian
Hackett

V. Salary Schedule 2024-25
Attachments:
* VIILv. 2023-24 and 2024-25 salary schedule

Fox proposed the attached salary schedule for next fiscal year,
which requires Board approval. This salary schedule gives all
employees a 3.45% increase to comply with the minimum
wage increase in the State of Oregon. The budget committee
approved the budget with the current salary schedule at their
meeting on May 14, 2024.

Motion

Brian
Hackett

vi. Conference system

Motion

Rachael

Page 9

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update

11



Attachments: Fox
* VIllLvi. Proposal Gorge Audio Video

The Hood River Library meeting room, used by over 400
groups annually, offers hybrid meetings. Our current system
was designed for a smaller space, which makes it difficult for
in-person and remote participants to communicate effectively
during hybrid meetings. Fox recommends we install a new
system with a centrally located camera and microphone,
speakers in each corner, and a control unit. This upgrade will
significantly enhance the patron experience.

Starting January 1, 2024, the threshold for direct procurements
not requiring three bids has been raised. We are now able to
proceed with direct procurements for amounts up to $25,000.
The project is under $25,000 but Fox still reached out to three
businesses and received quotes from two of the businesses.

* Gorge Audio Video, $13,445.95
* Projectus, $17,994

Fox recommends we accept the quote from Gorge Audio
Video. The Library Foundation will be funding the project. | ask
for Library Board approval since it exceeds my spending

authority.
vii. Library Director contract renewal Brian
Attachments: Hackett

o VIILvii. Library Director contract [2024-2025]

The Library Director is the only District employee who works
directly for the Board and is also the District's only contract
employee. The contract is typically renewed annually, and
Fox's contract is due to expire on June 30.

The Library Board voted at the May 21, 2024 Library Board
meeting to approve a step increase from step 4 to step 5 for
Fox. However, upon reviewing the Library Director contract and
salary schedules for 2023-24 and 2024-25, Fox realized she
made an error by stating she was at step 4, as she was
actually at step 5, having been given a step increase in June
2023.

With the District's legal counsel, Fox drafted a new contract
with the following changes approved by the Library Board at
their meeting: the salary was changed to $100,443 per year,
which is the salary of step 5 on the 2024-25 salary scale. As
discussed when approving the scale, this salary includes a
3.45% minimum wage adjustment increase, which all District

Page 10

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update



employees will receive for this fiscal year.

IX. /Announcements Rachael
Fox
i. Comments from board members All
ii. Requests/Comments from Library Director Rachael
Fox
X. |Agenda items for next meeting Brian
« Board officer elections Hackett

* Appointing agents of record

* Resolution establishing regular meeting time

* Discussion Board Library Friends and Foundation
liaisons

* Technology Use Policy

Xl. |Adjournment regular meeting Brian
Hackett

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary,
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations

ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property

ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights

ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7:00pm to 9:00pm in the
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign

language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is
given.

Page 11

Board meeting agenda [2024-06-18], supplementary info update

13



Budget Committee

Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, May 14, 6:00pm
Jean Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room
502 State St, Hood River
Budget officer: Rachael Fox
Meeting notes prepared: Rachael Fox and Mo Burford

Present: Rachael Fox (Staff), Mo Burford (Staff), Jen Bayer, Karen Bureker, Jazmin Contreras,
Brian Hackett, Megan Janik, Andrea Krol, Sara Marsden, Jean Shepppard, Eric Stasak.

I. Nomination and election of Chair

Library Director Rachael Fox called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. The committee
conducted introductions. Bureker nominated Hackett to serve as Committee Chair. Bayer
seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Il. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Hackett
Library Director Rachael Fox called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. The committee
conducted introductions. Bureker nominated Hackett to serve as Committee Chair. Marsden
seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

I1l. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Hackett
None stated.

IV. Budget message Fox
Fox read through the budget message included in the budget committee packet. Hackett
asked if the projected figures for the Westside Urban Renewal Area would change. Fox stated
that we would keep an open dialogue with the Urban Renewal Agency to get updated figures
annually. The consultant hired by the City of Hood River had projected a huge growth at the
beginning of the Westside Urban Renewal Area, but this has not been the case. Sheppard
asked if this was the best estimated projection. Fox explained that the projection listed was
the best estimate as of today.

Bayer asked if we had ever discussed the impact of Urban Renewal. Bayer stated that we
have known about Urban Renewal since the beginning when the District was formed, and the
Library District has benefited from it, but there are no comments stating the benefit. Hackett
stated that a larger area was created in the Westside, and it overtakes the gains we had from
the other districts that closed, 122 million versus tens of millions downtown.

Bayer stated that overall, if we invest in the community, the overall tax stream grows, but
these discussions are negative, and we are not including the positive. Sheppard stated that it
still takes money out of the budget. Stasak stated the Library Director is the budget officer,
and it is her job to identify reductions in revenue. Janik mentioned that we are never actually
getting the money back because a new Urban Renewal Area starts.

Bureker stated that we should look at the maximum impact the urban renewal areas would
have on the budget to ensure we are projecting correctly, as there is a maximum amount of

Page 1

lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget Committee meeting

14



acreage. Sheppard remembered being told last year that the waterfront was supposed to end,
and it was a surprise that it did not. Bayer stated that it was a surprise to the City as well.
Bayer recalled when the Downtown Urban Renewal ended early, and the District had an
additional $20,000, emphasizing the importance of looking at the bigger picture.

Hackett stated that his negative view stems from the fact that the Library District had no say,
and the voters had no say, and as an elected official for the library, he is an advocate for the
library. Fox stated that she did not have a breakdown in the past because the urban renewal
areas were in place when she became the Library Director. She explained that it is important
to have this information to project funding for the library and plan for the future.

Bureker stated that it is important to plan ahead for the maximum amount of increments and it
will be great if it ends early. Now, we need to think about the future and plan ahead. Stasak
asked for clarity regarding Urban Renewal. Bayer stated that the concept has existed since
the District was formed, and Stasak raised the point that if we are raised at a certain rate
within an inflationary period, we are going to have conflict. Sheppard stated that we cannot
raise our millage rate without a levy or bond, and the Library District has to stay within that
budget while there are mandated minimum wage increases, health insurance increases, and
inflation, with no other revenue coming in. Sheppard mentioned that we have a limit because
of Measure 5. Stasak stated that we benefit as citizens and is glad we are budgeting. Fox
continued with the budget message, moving forward with our current budget and sustaining it
without expansion. She mentioned that we can expand within a container, like using
volunteers and other innovative ways. Fox then reviewed the Strategic priorities and goals
listed in the budget meeting packet.

i. General Fund
Fox read through the budget message included in the budget committee packet. Fox then
reviewed the list of revenue in the budget committee meeting packet. Stasak asked for
clarification around the fine-free library policy. Fox explained that the District did not charge
late fines, but would charge patrons for the cost of an item if it was kept past four weeks. She
mentioned that if a patron accumulated over $15.00 in fees on their account, their account
would be blocked. When the items were returned the fees were removed from the account.
There was also a mention of auto-renewals being allowed up to two times.

Krol asked for clarification regarding the reserves. She asked how much of the $900,000 was
reserves since a portion was needed to carry the District over to the next fiscal year. Fox
mentioned that they would get to the specifics of expenditures later and asked Krol to let her
know if her question was not fully answered.

Fox moved on to the expenditures listed in the budget committee meeting packet. In the
section regarding personnel costs Sheppard asked if the increase of two hours for the
Children’s Services Assistant was for the Librarian Il category. Fox explained it was for the
Library Assistant Il category and the one and two were cut off in the documentation. Krol
asked for clarification if this was to make the change permanent. Fox stated it was to make it
permanent since it was increased this fiscal year.

Fox explained benefits for staff members. Sheppard asked how much they give to staff
utilizing the HRA Veba. Fox stated it is half the cost of the medical insurance, which costs
around $680, and then it is divided in half and prorated based upon the number of hours an
employee works. They would pay between $200-$300 per person instead of the $680 if they

Page 2

lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget Committee meeting

15



paid for the full medical benefits. Bayer stated the figure on page 20 shows the actual costs of
health benefits is $75,000 each year, although the District budgets almost twice that. Fox
stated on page 44 it is about $115,000. Bayer stated the actual cost it is about half. Sheppard
stated those figures are only through February 2024. Bayer looked at the previous years, and
it was around $77,000. Fox stated they had a large increase, a 15% increase overall, and
three more staff members switched over to the District health insurance. Bayer stated the
District has never been at the maximum. Fox agreed they have never been at the maximum,
but the District has flexibility if we need to pay more. Sheppard asked if the premiums begin in
January. Fox stated they do. Fox stated we had people add after the enroliment period, which
means the rates are fixed at the time of enroliment. Bureker asked why the maximum
projected amount for health insurance was less than last year. Fox stated she found a slight
calculation error on the maximum amount.

Stasak asked who does the payroll. Fox stated they have an accountant that actually
processes the payroll, but Fox is the one that enters the numbers as the Human Resources
manager, but the accountant processes the checks.

The budget committee discussed the cap of $1,300 for health insurance, and it was raised
two years ago and was generous. Last year, they had a reduction in health insurance
premiums, and then they discovered Providence was no longer in-network, so they had to
switch three months early. Bureker asked if the insurance was for every employee. Fox stated
they provide insurance for everyone working over 20 hours, and then it is prorated based
upon the number of hours they work each week. Bureker stated if you are under 20 hours,
you do not get any benefits. Fox stated that was correct. Stasak asked if the part-time
employees were just underneath that threshold. Fox stated that was correct. They have three
employees right underneath that threshold, and then one position at 12 hours per week.

Fox moved into the Materials and Services section of the General Fund listed in the budget
committee packet and discussed each line item. Bureker asked about the length of the
contract for the Cascade Locks. Fox stated it was an annual contract because it made
accounting purposes easier for them. Fox explained the telephone line item increased
because they switched to a new company. Sheppard asked about the new outdoor phone.
Fox explained it is VOIP and costs $15 per month to have the phone, and it breaks down
barriers to access. Sheppard asked why the internet line item went down. Fox stated she
wanted to speak to the Library Foundation to use the funds previously allocated for a new fish
tank to fund the patron WiFi hotspots. Fox explained the cost in time was greater than they
wanted to take on, as they were going to partner with the Fish and Wildlife to raise the salmon
and release them. Sheppard stated there were compliments about WiFi outside. Fox
explained they will install a covered, weather-protected area.

Hackett stated for some service providers, they have a regular process with a competitive
bidding process. It can be a challenge because they have limited options and get only one
bid. Hackett stated we are always looking best use our resources. Fox stated it is
recommended to go out for bids every 3-5 years, and public contracting rules raise the
amount to $25,000 when bids are needed. However, it is still important to get multiple bids for
costs below $25,000.

Fox explained they belong to a consortium called SAGE, which has an administrator that
oversees the consortium, and it covers their library material courier system. Marsden asked if
there were other options. Fox stated they used to belong to Gorgelink, and there were only a

Page 3

lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget Committee meeting

16



few member libraries. They do not have many options for other consortiums, and their former
Library Director made the decision that SAGE was the best option for them. Burford stated
many small libraries banded together, and it saves them fees. Fox stated they used the
professional services category in the past for hiring a consultant for the strategic plan for
$25,000. Hackett expressed that the consultant did a phenomenal job. Fox agreed.

Fox stated she left $10,000 in the program line item in case they get a donation, but they are
actually having all programs funded by the Friends and Friends of the Library Pat Hazlehurst
endowment. Fox stated we have extra funds budgeted in case they spend additional funds,
and then we do not have to reconvene the budget committee.

Sheppard asked why they are not transferring funds to the Capital Fund this year but planned
to do so next year. Fox stated she hoped she could work with the budget and create a plan to
transfer funds in the future. Sheppard asked if that was directly related to Urban Renewal,
and Fox explained it was the unanticipated extension that she needed to move around
$35,000. Sheppard stated Fox listed all the projects of what they would do with funds we have
saved. Hackett stated it is the forward budgeting, and they anticipated expenses of what they
need to replace. Hackett stated even the way they are replacing 20% of the physical stock of
technology equipment, which doesn't create a crisis. Sheppard stated they do not want to go
back to the voters, and they need to live within their means, but it all should not be spent on
operating costs, and they should be saving funds every year.

The board discussed vacation rollover and how the Library District allowed 80 hours of carry
over which is prorated based upon weekly hours.

The committee discussed the carryover of $910,000, and they need $480,000 to operate from
July through mid-November, with $100,000 of that being contingency. Bayer asked why it is
so high. Fox stated the carryover is for capital projects. Bayer stated they should spend the
money and not hold onto it, as it is almost double what they need to operate, and it is a bad
way to budget. Stasak stated the ending fund balance is the same as last yeatr, so they are
holding steady as long as they do not spend the contingency. Hackett states it is a
conservative budget. Bayer stated they are planning for things that fail, and they have
insurance. Hackett states, but it also includes expenses that are not known.

Fox stated they had the increase in the unappropriated fund balance because they had
$83,000 and reduced costs during COVID. The projections moving forward show the budget
iS not going to increase each year, and they are maintaining, and they are not going to be
able to save for the future, which is what she is looking at. They used to be able to transfer
funds to the capital fund. Bayer stated every year they have this conversation. Bayer does not
think it is the best way to spend funds. Sheppard stated they have been cautious, and rising
materials and services and personnel costs may create a tipping point, and costs will be more
than revenue. Fox stated they are at that point. Sheppard stated $400,000 sounds like a lot,
but it could go away in a heartbeat.

Bayer stated they have had more funds every year. Bureker asked what is an appropriate
amount of carryover. Sheppard stated they could spend the funds on projects and not
increase the carryover each year. Bayer stated they should not cut staff due to URA but
spend the funds instead. Sheppard stated they should not add personnel or open Mondays
and not overextend if we can’t maintain those costs. Bureker stated maybe they can increase
part-time hours. Fox stated she does not want to add more personnel if they cannot sustain

Page 4

lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget Committee meeting

17



them, and she does not want to lay off employees. She added the Bookmobile Specialist
position because she thought they would be getting more revenue but the URA was
extended. Sheppard stated they could add to the Collection Development.

Bayer stated there seems to be turnover. Burford explained subs leave for more employment,
and the last two employees that left were due to opportunities in their field.

Stasak stated they need a fund balance of $500,000 to operated from July through mid-
November. They will have a $400,000 balance with $100,000 for contingency, which is about
$300,000 unappropriated. The Governor's Finance Association recommends 10% of revenue
coming in as a minimum baseline. The District should have at least $200,000 as a minimum,
and an independent body recommends at least $200,000.

Sheppard asked if staff want more pay. Fox stated she most often hears a request for more
hours. Bayer suggested hiring a marketing person or website person. Bureker stated giving
the four employees twenty-two hours and benefits. Fox stated they would need to use the
unappropriated funds. Hackett stated the unappropriated funds are to cover future expenses.
Fox stated we are currently spending as much as we are receiving in income and this
includes having to make up $35,000 due to the extension of the URA.

ii. Capital Equipment Reserve Fund
Fox stated she did not recommend transferring funds this year. Fox went through the planned
expenditures over the next twenty years.

iii. Grants Fund
Fox went through the Grants Fund as outlined in the budget committee packet.

V. Budget Committee questions and deliberations Hackett
Krol thanked the team and expressed a lot of respect for the time and energy put into
preparing the budget. Krol's question was about the growth and concern about big expansion
to add an extra day and whether the limitation is due to the source of revenue. Krol asked if
the library can get any additional revenue beyond taxes, Friends, and Foundations. Hackett
stated he does not want to use levies for funding like the county, school district, and parks
and rec. Sheppard stated the first time the library went out for a special district, it failed, and
they do not want to have to go back to the voters. If they use a levy, they have to ask every
four to five years.

Sheppard stated if we want to spend additional fund we can wait until the next budget year or
reconvene the budget committee and spend money if they want.

Sheppard states 10% of reserve is too low, and 15-20% would be safer. Bayer stated they
could put funds into the Capital Fund. Bureker and Sheppard agreed that would be more
appropriate. Fox stated she has been conservative, and last year she tried making it so they
are expending the amount they are taking in. Hackett stated these are not extra funds but
funds they plan to use in the future for planned expenditures. Sheppard stated they could
transfer $100,000 to the Capital Fund, and it would accomplish the same purpose. Bayer
stated it would be more accurate and transparent. Krol stated it would be more accurate to
know how much they have in the General Fund they can spend. Bureker asked what if they
keep 15% and move the rest to the Capital Fund. Sheppard stated the unappropriated fund
balance expanded exponentially due to COVID, and they received $83,000.

Page 5

lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget Committee meeting

18



Stasak stated they could make the move tonight to move funds from the General Fund to the
Capital Equipment fund. Fox stated they typically move between $15,000 to $25,000 from the
General Fund to the Capital Equipment Fund. Committee members discussed the amount
they should transfer. Hackett proposes transferring $100,000 from the General Fund to the
Capital Equipment Fund for the expenses they plan to incur. Fox agreed they could transfer
the $100,000. Fox stated they needed to make adjustments to the figures in the

Recommend Budget Committee Motion. Hackett asked would it be $2,093,334 in the General
Fund, the Capital increase would be $215,000, and the Grants would maintain at the same
level. Fox stated that was correct.

VI. Approval of budget (ACTION) [if applicable] Hackett
Bayer made a motion to approve the recommended budget committee motion modified with
the General Fund be reduced to $2,093,334 in the General Fund, Capital increase $215,000
and the Grants with $477,000 for a total of $2,785,334 with a tax rate of $.39 per thousand.
Bureker seconded. Motion unanimously carries.

VIl. Recess or adjournment Hackett
The meeting was adjourned at 8:13pm.

Page 6

lILi. Minutes from the May 14, 2024 Budget Committee meeting

19



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, May 21, 2024, 7:00pm
Library Meeting Room and Zoom
502 State St, Hood River

Library Board:

Present: Board President: Brian Hackett, Board Vice-President: Karen Bureker, Board
members: Megan Janik, Sara Marsden, and Jean Sheppard. Library staff: Rachael Fox and
Mo Burford

The Hood River County Library District will hold this meeting by offering a hybrid format.
Participants can attend in-person or on Zoom Conferencing. Please use the following phone
number or video link:

1-253-215-8782, https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89745812618?
pwd=NFBFTOXxUV]FSNOdDVGNIiZTVsNDQ2dz09, Meeting ID: 897 4581 2618

Marsden moved to accept the consent agenda, encompassing
the minutes of the April 16, 2024 regular board meeting. Janik

provided the second. The motion passed with unanimous

Agenda Items Action Respon
sible
I. |Call to Order Brian
Board President Brian Hackett called the meeting to order at Hackett
7:02pm.
Il. |Approval of the agenda Motion Brian
(additions/corrections/deletions) Hackett
Fox requested to add an agenda item regarding Hood River
County District tax revenue and a Resolution No. 2023.24.03
Resolution authorizing a general fund transfer of appropriations
from Personal Services to Material Services. Marsden made a
motion to approve the agenda with the addition of a discussion
regarding Hood River County District tax revenue and a
Resolution No. 2023.24.03 Resolution authorizing a general
fund transfer of appropriations from Personal Services to
Material Services. Janik seconded. The motion carried
unanimously.
I1l. |Approval of the consent agenda Motion Brian
Hackett

lLii. Minutes from the May 21, 2024 Library Board meeting

20



approval.

V.

Actual or potential conflicts of interest
None stated

Brian
Hackett

Public comment (3 minutes each)
None present

Brian
Hackett

VII

Reports

i. Friends update
There was nothing to add to the written report.

Rachael
Fox

ii. Foundation update
There was nothing to add to the written report.

Rachael
Fox

iii. March and April 2024 Financial Statement
Fox presented the Library Board with the financial statements
for March and April 2024.

Rachael
Fox

iv. Director’s report
There was nothing to add to the written report.

Rachael
Fox

VIl.

Old Business

VIIL.

New Business

i. Public Records Policy

Marsden made a motion to approve the updated Public
Records Policy. Janik seconded the motion. The motion
passed unanimously.

Motion

Brian
Hackett

ii. Discussion Hood River County tax revenue

The District accountant from Onstott, Broehl and Cyphers
contacted Fox to let her know of a deduction of $35,000 from
our tax revenue statements in April 2024. We receive the tax
information from Hood River County. The accountant informed
Fox they could not get in contact with the finance department
at Hood River County. The county's former financial director
has left employment and they have a new director. Fox visited
the new Finance Director and they reported there was
potentially an issue with a bond and interest on the bond which
was the reason for the deduction and we should see a credit in
the future. Fox stated it sounded like they were still trying to
figure it out. Our accountant deducted the funds from our
revenue, which I do not believe is the correct action but he was
not sure to account for the deduction. Our accountant hopes
the funds will show as a credit on a future tax revenue
document and he can make the corrections to our financial
statements. Bureker mentioned following up to ensure this is
resolved. Fox stated she would follow up and report back to

Brian
Hackett

Page 2

lLii. Minutes from the May 21, 2024 Library Board meeting

21



the Library Board.

iii. Resolution No. 2023-24.03 Resolution
authorizing a transfer of appropriations from

Personal Services to Materials and Services

The District has spent additional funds on legal fees and other
categories in Materials and Services due to a rise in costs this
year. This rise in costs in specific categories were addressed in
the budget for FY 2024-25. Fox had planned the $35,000
deducted from tax revenue on the April financial statements
would have covered the additional expenses.

The District has additional funds in Personnel Services. The
District needs to move funds from Personnel Services to
Materials Services to stay within the proposed expenditures for
each fund. We can also use a new form in the future which will
allow us to shift appropriations within a fund without a
resolution.

Sheppard made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2023-
24.03 Resolution authorizing a general fund transfer of
appropriations from Personal Services to Materials and
Services. Bureker seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

Brian
Hackett

iv. Executive Session: Library Director Evaluation
The board entered Executive Session at 7:21pm. The board
ended Executive Session at 8:01pm.

Sheppard put forward a motion to increase Fox to step five of
the salary schedule effective July 1, 2024. Bureker seconded.
The motion carried unanimously.

Brian
Hackett

le

Announcements

Rachael
Fox

i. Comments from board members
None present

All

ii. Requests/Comments from Library Director

We received an email complaint for a book in our collection
from someone who appeared to be outside our service district.
Fox emailed them our Request for Reconsideration Policy and
Request for Reconsideration form, but she has not heard back.

Fox informed the Library Board that she was experiencing
health issues and might need to take intermittent leave from
work. Marsden stated the District could support her with fixing
any ergonomic issues that could be contributing to Fox's health
concerns. Fox stated that she would notify the Library Board if

Rachael
Fox

Page 3

lLii. Minutes from the May 21, 2024 Library Board meeting

22



she required an extended period of time off work.
X. |Agenda items for next meeting Brian
 2024-25 budget hearing and approval Hackett
» 2024-25 salary schedule approval
« Approval of recurring payments for 2024-25
» Discussion of 2024-25 President and Vice-President
positions
Discussion of 2024-25 regular meeting time
» Library Director Contract approval
XI. |Adjournment regular meeting Brian
The meeting was adjourned at 8:16pm. Hackett

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary,

Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property

ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights

ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7:00pm to 9:00pm in the
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is

given.

Page 4

lLii. Minutes from the May 21, 2024 Library Board meeting

23



Budget Committee

Meeting Minutes
Monday, June 10, 2024, 6:00pm
Jean Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room
502 State St, Hood River
Budget officer: Rachael Fox
Meeting notes prepared: Rachael Fox

Present: Rachael Fox (Staff), Mo Burford (Staff), Karen Bureker, Brian Hackett (Budget
Committee Chair), Megan Janik, Andrea Krol, Sara Marsden, Jean Shepppard.

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Hackett
Budget Committee Chair Brian Hackett called the meeting to order at 6:04pm. Bureker moved
to approve the agenda as presented. Sheppard seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Il. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Hackett
None stated.

lll. Correction: Hood River County Library District Recommended Budget
Committee Motion Fiscal Year 2024-25 (ACTION) Hackett

Fox explained the Library Budget Committee approved the library budget on Tuesday, May
14, 2024 with a change to include a transfer of $100,000 from the General Fund to the Capital
Equipment Reserve Fund. The budget committee passed the Hood River County Library
District Recommended Budget Committee Motion to include the transfer, but the adjustments
made to the motion were incorrect. In the motion, the General Fund was reduced by $100,000
and $100,000 was added to the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund. Fox explained she
consulted with the Oregon Department of Revenue Finance, Taxation, and Exemptions team
and confirmed the General Fund should have remained the same amount and the Capital
Equipment Reserve Fund would have increased by $100,000. The funds within the General
Fund were not reduced, only reallocated. The deduction would be reflected in the General
Fund under the Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance. After the beginning of the fiscal year,
the funds will transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund.

Hackett asked if there were any questions. No questions were asked. Bureker made a motion
to approve the Hood River County Library District Recommended Budget Committee Motion
for fiscal year 2024-25 as included in the June 10, 2024 budget committee meeting packet.
Marsden seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

IV. Recess or adjournment Hackett
The meeting was adjourned at 6:11pm.

Page 1

lLiii. Minutes from the June 10, 2024 Library Budget committee meeting

24



14

196png Gz-¥z0z pasodoid "eT'|lIA

vee'e6le vee'e6l'e S30dNOS3Y TVLOL| 29.°C51L°C 0€Z°L0L°C zLe'eLe’l Cl
palng) Jeak ui pa}os)|0o sexe | 6l'egLL 8GZ'erL’l Glz'eL0') b
yE8'vire’| yE8'vi' | PaAIadal 8q 0} pajewlse sexe] |  /9Z'66l°) ol
005816 005816 paing| 89 0} saxe) }deoxa ‘s90In0sal [ejo | 005'€S6 890'7.6 2.6'€96 160006 6
8
aNnuanal SNOSUE|[3SI| 00l - 14 L
anuanal [ejuswuianobiau| ¥0S 981 ¥€5'c 9
suofeuo(q 108°€E - .8 S
00S'e 00S'E S99 00S'E 669'C €.6'¢ L9g‘e 14
000'G2 000'Ge }salap| 0000} €6.'/¢ €8¥'Ge 0¥0'9 €
000°01 000'0} paAIaoal 8q 0} pajewjse saxe} paind) Ajsnolnald 000°G2 906, 8cl'le 96G°Ly [4
000016 000016 puey uo yseo sjqejleny 000'GL6 G0E'LEB 209°'206 ySb'Gy8 I
- v2/62/T £2-220Z 189X | 22-120T 1BdA
%Mm_ Buiuianon om“w%hommvo hwo_to 19bpng wa M\mmsm._. s|enyoe glA Buipaoaid isii4 | Buipasaid isii4
8PAOPY | (g 'hanoiddy | A8 Pescdold NOILdI¥DS3a SI2UNOSIY Jobpng pejdopy pE—
GZ-#20T JeaA IxeN Joj yebpng ElEQ |EJUOlSIH
jo13sig Ateaqi] Ajuno) JaAIY POooH $921N0SaY 0z-g97-do

aNN4d Tvd3N3O



9¢

196png Gz-¥z0z pasodoid "eT'|lIA

SNOILVYH3dO AYVHAIT ve
14
S..7CI) S..7C) «(314) sleainb3 awi] [In4 [ejo L S..C) [#4
evv'sL6 eVvv'sle S3IDIAYIS TVYNOSHAd TV.LOL |9V 126 669195 olv'eeL G16°C19 [44
(¥4
+86°G8Z +86°G8Z Sjyauaq [eJO] |6€G 6.2 890°6¢} L9v'G/L +89°99/ 0c
G68'9 G68'0 anes| |edlpaw pue Ajjwey pied |6.+'9 6l
sjyeuaq sakojdws Jsyl0 - 062'G - 8l
G0Z'9 g0z'9 aouelnsul Juswholdwaun|z.S'y 020y Svl'y 69L'v Ll
061791 0619l adouelInsul yyesH 05269l GLL'Y9 €00'9L ovL'vL 9l
00S'L 00S°lL aouelInsul uoljesuadwod ,SISMION |00 | [4°)4 86l'c v.0°'L Sl
Y¥.'2S Y¥.'CS VvOId4|596'61 288°'LE €L2'Cy 66€°8¢ 145
0SY'vS 0SY'vS uswaley €Ly LS 686°L€ 8GG'Gy 20L LYy ¢l
sjjausg cl
L
65¥°689 657689 Soue[eS [BJO] |L/8°LF9 .8G'cey £¥6°LGG 162905 ol
€P'001 €P'001 Joyoaug Arelar | 9’ v6 ¥82'v9 8G.°'16 ¥26'v8 6
198°¢L 198°¢.L [| veuelqI|1.6'69 GGG'GY ¥¥8'G9 6¥9'LG 8
818,61 818'/G1 | ueleiqi] |88y 6v L G¥8'v6 ¥9€'201 0lLg'ozl L
G9/'0L1 G99l Il Juejsissy Aieiqi| 628801 L¥0'€9 2€5°89 98€'€9 9
G88'6. G88'6. | uejsissy Aleiqrn |Gv6'zL LvL'6y 19€'69 vL1L'9g S
ov6'0G 1 9v6'0G 1) 1810 Ateiqi|8g6'zyL 8€.'66 Claade! €0l 14
IvL'6 L¥.'6 I 4910 Aleuqr [2v0'6 L.€'G 2€9'L Gee's €
sauejeg 4
S3JIANY3S TVNOSH3d 3
SNOILVY3dO AdvyAaIll
fpog Buiercd | esRILILIOD JoBPNg 189440 396png vz-6202 ¥202/62/2 £2-220Z Je9A 22-120Z 1e9A
Ad perdopy £d penoiddy Ad pesodoid Jou3sIq Aeaqi A3uno) JaAry pooH JBBA SIUL aia Buipaoaid isiid Buipsoald isiid
404 SINIWIHINDIY io0eng peidopy oy
GZ-¥20¢ J1es A 1XoN 40} Jobpng e1eq [EoLOISIH
sjuswalinbay pajielaq Le-a1

aNN4d TVd3IN3IO



ol -
j=)

€9

008'G 008's (Buipjing) Jomas pue Jayepn|009'G YGb'e ¥66'y 6vL'y 29
000°01L 000'01 seb [einyeN | 00001 9¢6'c Gel'6 1022 19
00€'Z 00€'2 abeqsen (0002 €8Z'L 629°1 189°L 09
00002 000'02 Ayouos13|000°02 79921 8169l viz'9l 6G
00§ 005 Juswaesinquial Buniied |00S - - 001 8G
005} 005} Juswdojansp pieog|00S‘L G6. 473 - yiel
000‘¢ 000‘¢ Buiures1 |000'c z6g'L 60V'C €6/ 9g
000'G 000'G [oAes1 {000y 0z8'l vey'y [Kele GG
000°Z1L 000°'Z1 sa||ddns 200 |000'¥ ) 6vs'cl GL0'vl ye0'vl vS
000 0002 Buisiuanpy 0052 6.1 9z8'C 919'z €g
0000} 0000 sweiboid 00002 60121 8¥5'02 GLL'8lL I4°]
005} 005} Bunuud| 000} 209 G8lL'L 8¥C LS
005} 005} ybray/ebelsod | 00G°L v.9 6L L 9eL’L 0S
000'€ 000'c Snoaue||29siA| 0052 225 689'¢ v2'T 6v
000't 000'% senp diysiaquiaj\ (000" eev'e 8z¥'e 7661 8y
S9DIAISS [BUOISSS0.d Ge6'L 298'gl L1z'8 Ly

000't 000‘% s801M9S 2697|000y €9l'y ¥96°| 0z8'l 9v
000'0Z 000°02 suapies [eLowad|\ yiws euelbiod 00002 129'C L2¥'6l ¥59'ce GY
000'G2 000'G¢ @oueunsul Ayjiqel pue Auadold|000°02 129'02 zee' Ll 9.0'v) 44
000'¥ 000'¥ juswdinbs pue ainjuing|000'y ¥06'2 ¥¥9'6 968°/ eY
000'c 000‘¢ suonos|3 1€9'C - €16 A
000'Z 0002 s491d0D |000'S 000'¥ ovs'e 1/0'€ (B4
00S'ZL 00S'ZL wniposuod Aeiqri| 005 9L 60€'9L 9eT'GlL z8L'clL ov
000'¥ 000'¥ S90IAJSS [BDIUYDS ] | 000 129'c 6.t'S vl 6¢
00062 000'62 S80IAIBS [eIp0ISND |000'62 cLo'vl G6G'ZE 8€6'62 8¢
00Z'c 00Z'c 181N0D|00€'2 ¥09'C L0V 9¢0'2 .8
000'c€ 000‘c€ Buipne pue BuunNoodY|000'ZE G9/'82 z55'ce 8.1'%C 9e
000'GL 000'G} ABojouyoa] |000'vL 6126 055'02 G8.'6l Ge
00008 000'08 juswdojanap uolde||00|000°06 1666 962'98 erl'yvL ve
000'G 000'G Joutsul|000'8 0S2's ¥0€'9 €€8'g €e
000'8 000'8 auoyds|e1 |00€'9 GZ9'v G6.'9 GBL'Y ze
00S'€ 00S'¢ J1ojens|3|005'C G0L'L G62'C 0zz'e Le
000'GL 000'G} OVAH|000°'GL 18L°L 29.'Ge 826°L1 0e
000'GZ 000'G2 @oueusjulew Bulpling 000°'02 eve'le Ble'ee 6le'ee 62
000'0Z 000°02 [eyuas Bulpling |00G' 1L 126'L1L €9L'vl 9ze'LlL 8¢
000'G 000'G ailqowy00g|000'S Gly 9/¥'T .2
00¢ 00¢ sableyo yueg|00¢ 0zz 09l 9ze 9z
S3DIAYIS ANV STVIHILVIN Gz




8¢

196png Gz-¥z0z pasodoid "eT'|lIA

pee'e61'z peee61L'e SLININIHINDIY TVLOL|L9LCSLT 0€z'L0LC zie'eLe’l Gl
162265 162269 JONVIVE ANN4 ONIAN3 A31VIMdO¥ddVYNN| 158'G69 v.
(s1ea A Joud) souejeg Buipus GOE'LEB 209°'206 €L

000°Ct 000°C} 9MI9saY UOIEIBA|000'C) - - - [
VL

€v0°68S°L £v0‘68Y°L sainjipuadxa |ejo] |9L6VPPL L0v'098 626'6LL°L 012'690°L 0L
69

000°‘001 000‘00L AONIONILNOD 00000 - - - 89
19

000°‘001 - IAYISIY TVLIdVO OL HI4ISNVAL|000°0L 000°‘0L 000°‘02 000°62 99
S9

009°cLy 009°‘cLy S3DIAYIS ? STVINILVIN TV.LOL|00S L0V 25.'88¢ gis‘zey G€L°29¢ ¥9




6¢

196png Gz-¥z0z pasodoid "eT'|lIA

000'S12 000°'SLL SLNINIHINOIY TVLOL|000°0€L 9v0°‘sS L 80L°LS) cl
000‘0v1 000°0¥% FANLIANIdXT F¥N.LND ¥O4 dIAYISIY | 000°GS L
(sseak Joud) souejeq Buipug oGlL'zzL G8lL'zcel 0l
000G 000G Kepno jeyided | 000°6L 825°0¢ 068‘ce €26°8l 6
SININIHINDIN 8
L
000512 000°SLL S323N0S3A 1V.LOL 000°0SL G6€'SEL 9¥0°SS L 80L°LS) 9
]
00000} - pun4 [eJauag woyy Jajsuel] | 0000} 0000l 00002 000'Se 14
000°€ 000°€ }sa18)u]|000°2 6ET'E 1982 042 €
000zl 000zl puey uo ysed|000'8L 1 9Sl'zel Ggl'zel 8€e'szl [4
S$304N0S3d L
Apog Buiuienon sonwwo) jebpng 19010 196png $2-2202 ycoz/6c/c %N.NNON Jes) mNN._\NON JesA
5 S0l ssodol JeaA SIyL dlA uipadald 1sii4 uipadald isii4
faperiopy faperonidy fapesoderd NOILdI¥OSIA SLNIWIHINOIY | 1e6png paidopy ey
- Jea\ XN Joj 196pn
GC-¥720C 1eS A XN 404 }2bpng €16 [EoUoISIH
pugsia >._m._n_|_ >u_.=._00 19AIY POOH uawdinba ajgeioaidap pue ‘swaisAs Buipjing Jofew jo Jiedas pue
uone||ejsul ‘sjuswanoidui/uononiisuod buipjing
‘uonisinboe puey Joj Aepino [eyded :sasodind payoads Buimojjoy 8y} 4oy ‘v L0Z
‘0z AeIN UO 800°¥1-€1.0Z "ON UORN|OSaY AQ PaysIqe}sa pue pazLoyIne si puny siyL
sjuswalinbay pue s921N0SdY L-an

aNN4d 3AY3S3TY LNJNIND3 TVLIdVO




0¢

196png Gz-¥20z pasodoid "er'|lIA

000°0. 00002 Juswdinba pue ainjiuin4 |000'69 0€.'9 zsz'ee 2899 1€
00008 00008 swelbold |000'0S 9€G'vE 088'v. veL'9L oc
000°0% 000°0% ABojouyoa] |000'sz - €8L'1 0LL'L 6¢
00008 00008 Juswdojanap uono3]100|000°0S Lie'ie 6LY'CY 189'92 8¢
S30IAISS pUE S[eLId)e| 12
9¢
000°LL 000°LL S99IAI9S |euostad |e}0] (000°L L - szl'L - 14
ve
00§ 00§ s90IAIes [euosiad JaYl0 |00 - - - €¢
[44
00l 00l souesnsul JuswAojdwaun |00L - - - 1z
soueBINSUI Y)edH - - - 0z
052 0S¢ uolesuadwod s uewsIop) |0GZ - 6l
0S. 0S5, VvOld4|06. - - - 8l
luswialiloy - AR
Sjyeusg 9l
000°S 000°S 1 ueysissy AJeiqi| 000's - GelL'l - Sl
00y 00v'v 134310 |00V Py - - - 143
€l
sauejes Zl
S99IAI9S [eUOSIad Ll
SLINIWIHINOIY 0l
6
000°LLY 000°LLY $324N0S3Y TVLOL 000°08€ S8Z‘091 z6lz6e zes've 8
L
00002 00002 suoneuop pun isinyjezeH led |000°02 - 000°LL 0000t 9
00006} 00005} suoljeuop uonepunod Aieiqi1| 000001k - 00588 006°2S S
000°0S 000'0S suoneuop Aelqi ay} Jo spuali4|000'Ge TrL'LL GeS'vl 000°'S} 14
000'GZL 000'GZ} (sesodind oyads) syueln 0006z L 6058 oLv'29 82C'CL €
000°CEL 000°CE} puey uo ysed|000°0L L PEO'PEL 1G2°0L1 ¥6.°LSC 4
S324NOS3Y l
Apog busenop | sepILILIoD 196PNg 12240 39bpng vz-6202 ¥202/62/2 £2-220Z JEOA 2Z-120Z 483\
£q paidopy Aq panouddy £q pasodoud e aLA Buipaoaid isiid Buipaoaid 1siid
NOILdI¥OS3A SLINIWIHIND3IY 1e6png pajdopy [enoy
GZ-720T JBd A XN Joj Jobpng e1eq [BoLoISIH
aNNd SLNVYO
Jou3sig Areaqi] Auno9 1oAYy pooH sjuswalinbay pue s921n0sdy oL-ai

aNnN4d 1vIo3ds




L€

196png Gz-¥z0z pasodoid "eT'|lIA

Ly
000°LLY 000°LL¥ S1ININIHINDIY TVLOL|000°08€ z61°262 vev'eze oy
- - JONVIVE ANNd ONIANT d3LViIdO¥ddVNN |- 6¢

(s1eak Joud) souejeq Buipu3 PEO'PEL ¥6.°16C 8¢
yAS
000°00L 000‘00L Kepno jeyded| 000001 - 066°€ G6€CL 9¢

Ge
000°99¢ 000'99¢ $3JIAISS puE sjeldjew [e301|000°692 €829 €v0‘eSt G0€'6S ye

€e
00096 00096 S$80IAISS pUE s[els)ew Jayl0 |000'G.L 96¢ 60.L'S 861, [43




Resolution No. 2023-24.04

Resolution adopting the budget, making appropriations,
imposing taxes, and categorizing taxes

Adopting the budget
Be it RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Hood River County Library District
hereby adopts the budget for the fiscal year 2024-25 in the total of $2,885,334, now on

file in the Hood River Library

Making appropriations
Be it further RESOLVED, that the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, are
hereby appropriated for the purposes shown on page 2 (except General Fund
“Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance / Reserve” is not appropriated).

Imposing the tax
Be it further RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Hood River County Library
District hereby imposes the taxes as provided for in the adopted budget at the rate of
$0.3900 per $1,000 of assessed value for operations, and that these taxes are hereby
imposed and categorized for the tax year 2024-25 upon the assessed value of all
taxable property within the District as follows:

Categorizing the tax

General government Excluded from limitation
limitation
General Fund $0.3900 / $1,000 $0.00

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 18th day of
June, 2024.

ATTEST:

Brian Hackett, President Rachael Fox, Library Director

VIILi.b.

Resolution 2023-24.04, adopting the budget and imposing taxes

32



€¢

sexe)} Buisodwi pue 18bpnq ay) bundope ‘+0'y2-£20Z uonnjosay "q'I'[lIA

¥£€'G88'¢$ | T62'2EL$ 0$ 000'CTT$ |000°00T$| 0% |000'SLT$| 009'6L.L$ €09'ce8$ |STVIOL

0$
000°L.¥$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 0$ |000°00T$| 000'99€$ 000'TT$ punj sjueio
000'STZ$ | 000°0VT$ 0$ 0% 0$ 0% | 000'G.$ 0$ 0$ pun- aAIasay [ejde)d
YEE'€6T'CS | 162'26S$ 0$ 000°CTT$ |000°00T$| 0% 0$ 009°'cTv$ EVy'GL6$  |pund [elous9

[elol EYVERE)Y| S Aouabunuo) | sisjsuel] ) Aepno | saainies S92INIBS :aNnn4

(g43n) | wawAed punyajuj | aines | [enuded » [euosiad
[e1oads 198 SIEIENEN

V0°p2-£€202Z "ON uonnjosay

uondope 3abpnq GZ-202Z




Salary Schedule, 2024-25

Steps: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Clerk | $14.71 $15.00 $15.30 $15.61 $15.92 $16.24
$30,597 $31,200 $31,824 $32,469 $33,114 $33,779

Clerk Il $16.59 $16.92 $17.26 $17.61 $17.96 $18.32 $18.69
$34,507 $35,194  $35,901 $36,629 $37,357 $38,106 $38,875

Library Assistant $19.93 $20.33 $20.74 $21.15 $21.57 $22.00 $22.44
$38,813 $42,286 $43,139 $43,992 $44,866 $45,760 $46,675

Library Assistant $22.90 $23.36 $23.83 $24.31 $24.80 $25.30 $25.81
$44,595 $48,589 $49,566 $50,565 $51,584 $52,624 $53,685

Librarian | $27.48 $28.03 $28.59 $29.16 $29.74 $30.33 $30.94
$53,526 $58,302 $59,467 $60,653 $61,859 $63,086 $64,355

Librarian Il $33.46 $34.13 $34.81 $35.51 $36.22 $36.94 $37.68
$65,156 $70,990 $72,405 $73,861 $75,338 $76,835 $78,374

Library Director $44.61 $45.50 $46.41 $47.34 $48.29 $49.26 $50.25
$86,875 $94,640 $96,533 $98,467 $100,443 $102,461 $104,520

Range approved by the Board of Directors,
Steps established by Library Director, May 14, 2024

Vlll.v. 2023-24 and 2024-25 salary schedule

34



Steps:

Clerk |

Clerk 11

Library Assistant

Library Assistant

Librarian |

Librarian 1l

Library Director

Salary Schedule, 2023-24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
$14.21 $14.49 $14.78 $15.08 $15.38 $15.69
$29,557  $30,139  $30,742  $31,366  $31,990  $32,635
$16.03 $16.35 $16.68 $17.01 $17.35 $17.70 $18.05
$33,342  $34,008  $34,694  $35,381  $36,088  $36,816  $37,544
$19.26 $19.65 $20.04 $20.44 $20.85 $21.27 $21.70
$38,813  $40,872  $41,683  $42,515 $43,368  $44,242  $45,136
$22.13 $22.57 $23.02 $23.48 $23.95 $24.43 $24.92
$44,595  $46,946  $47,882  $48,838  $49,816  $50,814  $51,834
$26.55 $27.08 $27.62 $28.17 $28.73 $29.30 $29.89
$53,526  $56,326  $57,450  $58,594  $59,758  $60,944  $62,171
$32.33 $32.98 $33.64 $34.31 $35.00 $35.70 $36.41
$65,156  $68,598  $69,971  $71,365  $72,800 $74,256  $75,733
$43.10 $43.96 $44.84 $45.74 $46.65 $47.58 $48.53
$86,875  $91,437  $93,267  $95,139  $97,032  $98,966 $100,942

Range approved by the Board of Directors,
Steps established by Library Director, May 9, 2023

Vlll.v. 2023-24 and 2024-25 salary schedule

35



PROPOSAL

Conferencing System

Hood River County Library

502 State St
Hood River, OR 97031
541-387-7062

Revision: 0
Modified:  11/26/2023

AV Automation Pros, Inc.

1450 Tucker Rd.

Hood River, OR 97031
541-386-9337
www.gorgeaudiovideo.com

www.gorgeaudiovideo.com




Meeting Room

Teleconference System

El
-
E
.
Lo o]
- ‘
= &

g

y

* Price Includes Accessories

1

Atlona AT-HDVS-CAM
PTZ (Pan Tilt/Zoom) Camera For HDVS-300 (Soft Codec Conferencing System)

Biamp TesiraFORTE X 400

TesiraFORTE X 400 is a meeting room DSP featuring multiple network and analog
audio connection points, with 4 channels of Acoustic Echo Cancellation (AEC)
assignable across any digital or analog input.

Biamp Systems APPRIMO TEC-X 2000 BLACK
Touch-Enabled Control Pad, Black

Biamp Systems P6-SM BLACK

Pendant, Indoor/Outdoor 6.5" Coaxial Loudspeaker, Sunshine Profile, Black

Biamp Systems TESIRA EX-UBT
Expander Supports Up To 8 Channels Of Configurable USB Audio

Biamp Systems Tesira TCM-1A

The Parlé TCM-1A is an AVB ceiling microphone and PoE+ amplifier comprised of
a pendant microphone and plenum box.

Biamp Systems Tesira TCM1EX

The Parlé TCM-1EX is an expansion AVB ceiling microphone intended to be used
as a second and third microphone in conjunction with a TCM-1 or TCM-1A,; it
cannot operate as a standalone device.

Binary B-360-1CAT-30
360 Series 4K Hdr Economy Extender With IR

Binary B6-4K2-2

B6 Series 4K Ultra HD Premium Certified High Speed HDMI Cable With Griptek
2M

Binary B-USB3-AB-2M
USB 3.0 A Male To B Male Cable - 6.56 Ft (2 M)

$692.31

$3,807.69

$466.15

$1,427.68

$652.31

$1,861.54

$795.38

$286.37

$57.00

$26.08




= 1 Binary B-USB3-AB-4M $16.02
USB 3.0 A Male To B Male Cable - 13.12 Ft (4 M)

S50
3,%(6 o 1 Generic Miscellaneous Shop Supplies $156.00
5?‘/':_3‘,‘ e
Ay
//: 4  Single (1) Cat6 Run $136.00
Single Catb6 cable run for data, control and video distribution.
1 WattBox WB-100-PS-6 $17.42
Power Strip - 6 Outlets
Teleconference System Total $10,397.95
Meeting Room Total $10,397.95
Project Subtotal: $10,397.95

* Price Includes Accessories




Equipment: $10,397.95
Labor: $3,048.00
Grand Total: $13,445.95

Client:

Date

Contractor: AV Automation Pros, Inc.

232828

Date




HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY DIRECTOR CONTRACT

PARTIES:

Hood River County Library District, an (“District”)
Oregon Special District

502 State Street

Hood River, OR 97031

Rachael Fox (“Director”)
1461 Sunset Road
Hood River, OR 97031

RECITALS:

I. The District desires to employ Rachael Fox as Director and Rachael Fox desires employment as
Director for the District.

Il. The parties desire to create an agreement that comprehensively details the terms and conditions of
the Director’s employment with the District.

TERMS CONDITIONS AND COVENANTS:
A. Employment.

1. The District agrees to employ Rachael Fox as Director to perform the functions and duties of
Director as specified in the position description, policies and procedures, rules, and regulations of the
District, as may be prescribed by the Board of the District (“District Board” or “Board”) periodically.
The District Board vests in the Director day-to-day control of District operations, and reserves to the
District Board sole policy making authority and exclusive control over matters of fiscal policy, budget,
and financial matters of the District.

2. The authority of the Director shall include, without limitation, the following: (a) management,
administration, and direction of District operations; (b) hiring, disciplining and discharging of District
employees, and volunteers; (c) execution and administration of District policies within budget
appropriations pursuant to District policy, ordinance, or resolution; (d) policy advice to District Board,
and (e) such additional and further duties as the District Board may require from time to time.

B. Performance Goals and Evaluation. The District Board shall meet with the Director annually
during the month before Rachael Fox's initial hire date of June 29, 2011 to establish performance
goals for the coming year and to evaluate and assess the performance of the Director in meeting
goals of the past year and progress toward achieving the District's current strategic plan.

VIIl.vii. Library Director contract [2024-2025] 40



C. Hours of Work and Outside Activities.

1. Director’s Time. The parties acknowledge that the performance of the duties of Director constitutes
a full-time job. It is recognized that the Director must devote time outside of normal office hours to the
business of the District and, to that end, the parties recognize that the Director is exempt as a
professional from the overtime provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, and its counterpart
in Oregon law.

2. Outside Business. The Director shall not be engaged in teaching, consulting, or other non-district
related business without the prior written approval of the District Board. In this event, the District Board
approves this non-district related business, the Director must, to the greatest extent possible, utilize
his/her vacation or other leave time to perform such outside business.

3. Civic Involvement. The parties agree it is necessary for the Director to be an active participant in
community activities, and the Director agrees to be actively involved in community and civic
organizations.

D. Term of Employment.

1. The term of this Agreement is for 12 months, beginning on the 1st day of July, 2024, and continuing
through the 30th day of June, 2025, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. In the event this
contract is renewed, the parties anticipate that the renewal term will be for a twelve-month term from
July 1 to June 30 each year hereafter.

2. Nothing in this Agreement shall grant the Director a property right in his/her position, nor prevent,
limit, or otherwise interfere with the right of the District to terminate the services of the Director at any
time, with or without cause, subject only to the provisions of this Agreement pertaining to termination
and severance pay. The Director is an at-will employee of the District.

3. The Board may suspend the Director with full pay and benefits at any time during the term of this
Agreement if it deems that this action is in the best interests of the District and reasonably necessary.

F. Termination and severance.

1. Termination without Cause. This Agreement may be terminated either by the District or the Director
for any reason whatsoever upon the giving of sixty (60) days written notice to the other party.

2. Termination For Cause. This Agreement may be terminated immediately at the discretion of the
District upon a determination by the Board that:

a. The Director failed or has refused to comply with the policies, standards or regulations of the
District.

b. There is probable cause to believe that the Director is guilty of fraud, dishonesty, or
misappropriation of funds, embezzlement, or other act of misconduct or dishonesty in the rendering of
the services on behalf of the District.

c¢. The Director has failed or refused to perform his/her duties as provided for in this Agreement.

VIIl.vii. Library Director contract [2024-2025] 41



4. Severance for Termination with Cause. Upon termination for cause by the District the Director shall
not be entitled to receive any severance pay. The Director will be entitled to receive compensation for
all earned but unused vacation leave and accrued holidays, subject to the general guidelines of the
District.

G. Compensation.

1. Salary. The base salary for the Director shall be $100,443 per year, payable by the District on a
monthly basis.

a. The District agrees to review the base salary and other benefits of the Director at the Director’s
annual performance review with any salary increase to be effective if and when determined by the
District Board.

b. Based upon the review, the parties will negotiate any desired changes, subject to the economic
realities facing the District and the results of the performance evaluation. Raises will be based on
merit and availability of funds.

2. Automobile. The Director may submit mileage reimbursement requests for business-related
automobile use, which, following approval by the Board, will be paid per District policy.

3. General Reimbursements. The District may reimburse the Director for expenses of non-personal
and job-related nature that are incurred, upon receipt of expense vouchers or receipts, accompanied
by a written explanation.

4. Professional Development and Organizations. In accordance with District policy and subject to
available funds, the District may budget and pay reasonable registration, travel, and subsistence
expenses of the Director for professional and official travel, meetings, and occasions deemed
necessary or desirable by the Board to continue the professional development of the Director and to
carry out official functions of the District.

5. Membership Dues for Professional Organizations: The District will pay for the Director’s
membership dues in the Oregon Library Association, American Library Association, and other
organizations, subject to the Board's approval.

6. Membership dues for Civic Organizations: The District encourages the Director to be involved in
civic activities and organizations if such involvement advances the District's mission, vision, and
values. Accordingly, the District may reimburse the Director for expenses associated with the
Director’'s membership in one or more civic organizations.

H. Benefits. The Director shall receive the benefits as the District has provided and may hereafter
provide during the term of this contract and any renewals thereof. These benefits include include all of
those offered to full-time, exempt District employees, as delineated in the Personnel Policies.

l. General Provisions.
1. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this

Agreement shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected but shall remain in full force and
effect.

VIIl.vii. Library Director contract [2024-2025] 42



2. This contract embodies the entire agreement between the parties and, except as expressly
provided herein, it cannot be varied except by written agreement of the parties. Amendments to this
Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.

3. It is agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the State of Oregon, and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be exclusively in
the Circuit Court, County of Hood River, State of Oregon. If any suit or action is brought to enforce the
terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be awarded reasonable costs and attorney fees, at
arbitration, if any, trial and on appeal.

4. Any notice provided for or concerning this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed
sufficiently given when sent by certified or registered mail if sent to the respective address of each
party as set forth at the beginning of this Agreement, or such other address as a party may provide by
written notice to the other party.

5. By the Director’s signature below, the Director acknowledges that he/she is an at will employee and
that his or her employment may be terminated without cause by the District Board, at any time.

6. The Director’s employment shall also be governed by the terms and conditions of the District’s
Personnel Policies to the extent the policies therein are not contrary to the foregoing terms and
conditions. In the event of a conflict between the policies and this Agreement, the terms and
conditions of this Agreement shall control.

7. The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement will not be construed as a
waiver or limitation of that party’s right subsequently to enforce and compel strict compliance with
every provision of this Agreement.

8. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, including by signature pages
delivered in electronic format, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Approved by the Hood River County Library District at an open, public meeting on the 18th day of
June, 2024.

Hood River County Library District:

Date
Brian Hackett, Board President
Director:
Date
Rachael Fox
4

VIIl.vii. Library Director contract [2024-2025]

43



Approved as to form:

Ruben Cleaveland
Library District Legal Counsel

VIIlL.vii. Library Director contract [2024-2025]

Date

44



